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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 8" Annual General Meeting of Members of Kuttukaran
Green Private Limited (Name changed from Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private
Limited) (“Company”) will be held at 11.00 A.M. on Tuesday, 29% July, 2025, at the
Registered Office of the Company at Door No.40/3397, Ist Floor, Kuttukaran Centre,
Mamangalam, Ernakulam, Kochi, Kerala-682025, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2025 together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the financial year
ended 315 March, 2025.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. PufhiyaveetiL John Shice (DIN: 09186037),
who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 (M read with

“Section 102 (2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder the Board of Directors of the company be and
is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of M/s R. C. N. Price & Co, (Firm
Registration No.0027855), for the period from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company, who have been appainted by the Members in the 6% Annual General
meeting as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014."

By order of the Board
For Kuttukara\;‘l Green Private Limited

\ ‘

N\ave'éﬁﬁu\lip “‘\
(Director),

(DIN: 00018827)

Place: Ernakulam
Date: 15.05.2025
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1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and
the proxy need not be a member of the company. The proxies to be
effective should be lodged with the company at least 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting,

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding
50 and holding in aggregate not more than 10 percent of the total
share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than 10 percent of total share capital of the company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. A corporate member intending to send its authorized representatives
to attend the meeting in terms of section 113 of the Companies Act,
2013 is requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the board
resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its
behalf at the meeting.

4. Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to submit
the attendance slips duly filled in for attending the meeting.

5. During the period beginning 6 hours before the time fixed for the
commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the
meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at
any time during the business hours of the Company.

6. All documents referred to in the notice and accompanying explanatory
statement are open for inspection at the registered office of the
Company on all working days, except Saturdays, between 11:00 a.m. To
1:00 p.m. up to the date of the general meeting and at the venue of the
meeting for the duration of the meeting.

7. Members are requested to kindly notify the Company of any changes in
their addresses/e-mail address so as to enable the Company to
address future communication to their correct addresses,
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8. Pursuant to section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 35
of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended, Companies
are permitted to send official documents to their shareholders
electronically.

9. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the above resolutions is enclosed and forms a
part of the notice.

10. Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
and other relevant records in respect of the ordinary business are
available at the Registered Office of the Company and electronically
for inspection of the members during business hours between 10 am
and 5 pm on all working days, except Saturdays.
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By ordér of the Board
For Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

Place: Ernakulam
Date: 15.05.2025
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting
hall)

l, hereby record my presence at the 8" Annual General Meeting of Kuttukaran Green
Private Limited (Name changed from Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
held at 11.00 A.M. on Tuesday, 29% July, 2025 at Door No.40/3397, Ist Floor, Kuttukaran
Centre, Mamangalam, Ernakulam, Kochi, Kerala-682025.

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING VENUE :

Name

Address &
email |ID

folio no.

No. of shares
held

| certify that | am the registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of
the Company.

Signature of member / proxy




Form No. MGT 11
. PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 19(3) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name, address
and email ID of
the
shareholder(s)

Folio na.

I / we, being the member(s) of ___
Company, hereby appoint:

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the

8" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 11.00 A.M. on Tuesday, 29 July, 2025

at Registered Office at Kuttukaran Centre, Mamangalam, Cochin-682025 or / and at any

adjournment thereof, in respect of such Resolutions as indicated below:

Sl . Voted | Voted
Resolutions . . )

No. for against
To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of

1 the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025

Re-appointment of Mr. Puthiyaveetil John Shice as a Director

liable to retire by ratation.

3 To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors

2

3
U g s o

e Y 2 ¢ gL s

Signed this =-=-mememeo . day of =—mmemmeee 2025
Affix One
Rupee
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of proxy holder(s) Signature of shareholder



Notes: (1) The proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.
(2) A proxy need not be a member of the Company. (3) In the case of joint holders, the vote
of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the
exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the Register of Members. (4) The Form of proxy confers
authority to demand or join in demanding a poll. (5) The submission by a member of this
Form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person and voting at the
meeting. '
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To,

The Members,
Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Company's 8% Annual Report together
with the report of the statutory auditors and the audited financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In the financial year 2024-25, the global economy witnessed modest growth,
with global light vehicle sales reaching 89 million units—a 2% increase over the
previous year. However, regional performance varied dueto factors like inflation,
geopolitical tensions, and tariff impositions. In the U.S,, a 25% tariff on imported
vehicles initially boosted sales, but volumes dropped sharply by mid-year.
Similarly, the UK experienced a drastic decline in vehicle production in May 2024,
its Lowest since 1949. Despite these challenges, the electric vehicle (EV) segment
remained a global growth driver, with sales reaching 17.1 million units—a 25%
year-on-year rise—led by China's continued dominance.

Back home, India maintained its position as one of the fastest-growing major

- economies in 2024-25, recording a real GDP growth of 6.5%. This resilience
supported robust momentum in the auto sector, driven by rural demand,
consumption recovery, and export strength. The agriculture sector grew at 4.6%,
sustaining demand for affordable personal mobility. While industrial growth
eased, the Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme encouraged investments in
auto and EV components. Eased inflation, supportive monetary policy (repo rate
at 6.0%), and improved liquidity enhanced vehicle affordability. The
government's continued support for EV adoption through FAME Il and state-level
incentives strengthened India’s position as a global mobility hub.

Amidst rising environmental concerns, Electric Vehicles (EVs) are gaining traction
globally, including in India. The Country is one of the signatories to the Paris
Agreement under the United Nations Framework Convention on climate change.
It is also part of the EV30@30 campaign, targeting a 30% sale share for EV by
2030,

The three-wheeler segment registered its highest-ever domestic sales in FY
2024-25, reaching 7,41,420 units and surpassing the pre-pandemic peak of FY
2019. This growth was led by a sharp rise in passenger three-wheelers, catering
to the increasing demand for affordable last-mile urban transport. Accelerated

Kuttukaran www.laittukaran.in
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adoption of electric three-wheelers—backed by better financing and rising
urbanisation—further bolstered the segment. Strong uptake in tier-2 and tier-3
cities also supported the revival, marking a significant milestone in the segment’s
recovery. '

Business Operational Review

Key highlights of financial performance of your Company for the financial
year 2024-25 are provided below:

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the revenue from operation were at Rs. 139.87
million as against Rs. 243,57 million in the previous year, recording a decrease
of 42.57%.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY & HIGHUGHTS

(In INR millions, except earnings per share data)

Particulars FY 2025 FY 2024
Net Revenue from Operations 139.87 243,57
Other Income 4.47 1.25
Total Revenue 14434 244.82
Employee benefit expenses 20.49 19.16
Finance costs 6.25 6.28
Depreciation and amortization 5.10 5.07
expenses
All other expenses 126.79 223.64
Total Expenses 158.63 25414
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax -14.29 -9.32
Tax Expense: 0
Current Tax -
Deferred Tax -3.52 -2.07
Profit / (Loss) after Tax -10.78 -7.25
Earnings per equity share(in -14.19 -41.15
Rs)
-14.19 -41.15
Basic: -14.19 -41.15
Diluted::
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2. DEEMED PUBLIC COMPANY STATUS

As per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013 a company which
is a subsidiary of a company, not being a private company, shall be deemed to be
public company for the purposes of the Companies Act even where such
subsidiary company continues to be a private company in its articles.

Being a Subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited, with effect from 04t
April, 2022 our Company become a Deemed Public Company as per Proviso to
Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013, However, our Company has continued
to be a Private Limited Company as per the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Certain provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 becomes applicable
to the Company as a material subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
which became listed on 19" March, 2024.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any amount
to the Reserves for the year under review.

4, DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the
relevant circumstances, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend

any Dividend for the year under review,

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the
year under review.

The Board of Directors of the holding company, Popular Vehicles and Services
Limited, at its meeting held on February 12, 2025 proposed the divestment of its
investment in your Company, considering the Company's financial and
operational performance. The Board of the holding company granted in-principle
approval for divestment in the same meeting, in compliance with applicable
regulatory requirements.
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6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

7. CAPITAL & DEBT STRUCTURE

During the year under report, there has been change in the Authorized share
Capital of the Company.

As on 31t March, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of your Company stood at
Rs. 4,01,00,000/- (Rupees Four Crores One Lakhs Only) consisting of 20,10,000
(Twenty Lakhs Ten Thousand) Equity shares of Rs. 10/-(Rupees Ten) each and
20,000 (Twenty Thousand) Non-Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs. 1000/~ (Rupees Thousand) each.

During the year under review, the Company has converted an inter-corporate
loan received from the holding company which amounts to Rs.1,00,00,000 into
equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

The paid-up equity share capital of your Company stood at Rs. 2,44,02,430/-
(Rupees Two Crore Forty Four Lakh Two Thousand Thirty Only) divided into
9,40,243 (Nine Lakh Forty Thousand Two Hundred Forty Three) equity shares of
Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 15,000 (Fifteen Thousand) Non-Cumulative
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 1000/~ (Rupees Thousand)
each fully paid up respectively. '

8. CREDIT RATING

The Company has not obtained Credit Ratings of outstanding for Debt
Instruments / facilities.

9, UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("the IEPF
Rules"), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the
Company to the IEPF; established by the Government of India, after completion of
seven years. Further, according to the |EPF Rules, the shares on which dividend
has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or
more shall also be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.
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However, your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven years in Unpaid Dividend Account. Therefore, there were no funds
which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection fund
(IEPF) and no amount is lying in Unpaid Dividend A/c of the Company.

10. MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the Designation : DIN
Directors

Mr. Naveen Philip Director 00018827
Mr, John K Paul Director 00016513
Mr. Francis K Paul Director 00018825
Mr. Lloyd Director 09186036
Frankline Dsouza

Mr. Puthiyaveetil Director 09186037
John Shice

None of the directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of
the Act.

i) Appointment

There was no appointment of Directors during the period under
review.

ii) Resignation

There was no resignation of directors during the period under review.

iii) Betirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Puthiyaveetil John Shice (DIN: 09186037), Director retires by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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Key Managerial Personnel

Provisions of section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the
Company.

Independent directors

As per Rule &4 sub rule 2 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required to appoint Independent
Directors.

Declaration by Independent Directors

~ As per Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 the criteria of independence

laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the company.

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & ITS COMMITEES

a)

b)-

Board meetings

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the Board of Directors
met six times on 08t April, 2024, 15* May, 2024, 10* August, 2024, 16t
August, 2024, 12t November, 2024 and on 06" February, 2025. Requisite
quorum was present in all the meetings and the intervening gap between
the meetings is within the period as prescribed under Section 173 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Finance and Authorisation Committee

The Company also has a Finance and Authorisation Committee
(sub-committee) which is constituted with Mr. Naveen Philip (Chairman),
Mr. Puthiyaveetil John Shice, Director and Mr, Lloyd Frankline Dsouza,
Director as members.

During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company has held 4 (Four)
meetings of the Finance and Authorisation Committee on 05th June, 2024,
22nd November, 2024, 30th December, 2024 and on 04th February, 2025.
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c) Committees

The Company is not mandatorily required under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder to constitute any
committees under sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

There are no Directors, key managerial personnel or other employees who
are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment
Rules,2016.

13. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of clause(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 read with sub-section
(5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby state and
confirm that—

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b) Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently
and the Directors made judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company as at 31% March 2025 and of the loss of the company for
that yearn;

c) Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Annual Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

e) Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively."
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ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted the procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting record, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

15. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors has not reported to the
Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any instances of
fraud committed against the Company by its Officers or employees.
16. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the financial year under report the Company.has not entered into or
invested in any new Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates. The details of
the Holding and Subsidiary Companies are given below:-
o Holding/ fpplicable
' Name of the Company Subsidiary/ ection |
No. Associate Companies
] Act,2013
1 Popular Vehicles and Services Holding 2 (46)
Limited _ Company
2 NIiL : Subsidiary 2(87)
Company
17. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to
time, the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under said Rules.
18. DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits and, as such no amount
on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on
the date of the Balance Sheet. Thus no particulars are reported as required
under Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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19. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES

During the financial year under review, the.Company has not granted any loan,
guarantee or made any investment coming within the purview of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The details of Investments, Loans, Guarantees and
Securities have been disclosed in the Financial Statements.

20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

The transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions
contained in Section 188(1) of the Act read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Information on material
transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read
with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure-A
in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this report.

21, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The company does not require complying with CSR provisions since the company
does not fall under the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act 2013.

22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
- EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The company uses power saving lighting equipment's for its office and
workshop and saves power wherever there is scope for energy saving.

No technology absorption has taken place during the year under
consideration.

There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year.

23.RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, access, monitor and
mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the
business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuous basis. P
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24, VIGIL MIECHANISM

During financial under review the Company does not meet the criteria specified
under section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013 so there is no requirement to
form a vigil mechanism or whistle blower policy.

25. MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES/REGULATORS

During the financial year under review, there were no material orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status
and company'’s operations in future.

26.STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. R. G. N. Price & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam, was re-appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 6% Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 03 August, 2023 for a period of 5 consecutive years till
the conclusion of 1% Annual General Meeting of the Company.

27.STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Statutory Auditors’ in their Report for the financial year ending 31 March,
2025 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

However the auditors have noted a comment on usage of funds raised on short
term basis aggregating to Rs. 24.95 million for long term purposes during the
year. This utilisation was necessitated by the Company's ongoing efforts to
ensure business continuity amidst challenging market conditions and
operational constraints.

28. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder in respect of Secretarial Audit shall not apply to the Company for the
financial year 2024-25.

29.COMPUANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND
SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2

In terms of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company is complying with the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI) with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings and
such systems were adequate and operating effectively. TR
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30. ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the company is available at the website of the Company
https://piaggio.ecomarg.com/.

31. HUMAN RESQURCES MANAGEMENT

Human Resource Department plays a pivotal role in achieving organizational
excellence. Your Company constantly strives to develop quality human
resources, to meet the challenges of competitive business environment and
to build critical capabilities in achieving the Company’s objectives and goals.
The Company is continuously renewing and updating the knowledge and skill
of its employees at all levels through training and development.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Company had a total head count of 65 employees,
reflecting a reduction of 8 employees compared to the previous year. Your
Company takes significant efforts on employee development by imparting
training to employees at various levels.

32.DISCLOSURE _UNDER_THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee as required under the
said Act to take necessary preventive actions as may be possible and also to
carry out redressal of complaints, if any, on sexual harassment and for
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. Summary of sexual
harassment complaints received and disposed of during the financial year
2024-25 are as follows:

No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year: 0
No of complaints received : 0

No of complaints disposed off: 0

Number of cases pending at the end of the year:0

The Committee has submitted the Annual Report on POSH for the calendar year
2024 to the Company and the Board of Directors took note of the same at their
meeting dated 06.02.2025. The report has also been submitted to the District
Officer, pursuant to Section 21 of the POSH Act, 2013.

Kuttularan www.kuttukaran.in

fenieys vt yoo




Kuttukaran Centre Mamangalam
iCochi, Kerala, India, 682025

£(0484) 2341134
e: cs@popularv.com

CIN US0400KL2077PTC049442
GST 32AAGCK6365F1ZL

Kuttukaran Green e S

33, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, the company enjoyed cordial relationship with
workers and employees at all levels and the Directors thank all the
employees for their continued support, co-operation and valuable
contributions.

34.DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE APPLICATION AS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING IS PENDING
UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE (1IBC), 2016 DURING THE YEAR
ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

Not applicable

35.DISCLOSURE _ABOUT THE_DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNTS OF THE
VALUATION EXECUTED_ AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE
VALUATION DONE_WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THERE OF.

Not applicable

36. MATERNITY BENEFIT

The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and has extended all statutory benefits to eligible
women employees during the year.

37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to express their appreciation to the shareholders and
other stakeholders for their continued faith in the company and also for their
valuable support.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

Yo AT

(; ;
Naveefi Philip John K. Paul
(Director) (Director)

DIN: 00018827 DIN: 00016513

Place: Kochi-25
Date: 15.05.2025
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FORNM NO.AQC -2
ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
arm'ss length transaction under third proviso thereto,

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's lenéth basis -~

SL. No. Particulars Details

A Name (5) of the related party & nature of relationship
B Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

C Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction
D

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
lustification for entering u:1to s.uch contracts or NOT APPLICABLE
arrangements or transactions

F | Date(s) of approval by the Board

G | Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed
H | in General meeting as required under first proviso
to section 188

m

2. *Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
Na. .

transaction including the value, if any
Date (s) of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any
*Refer Note no: 33 af the financial staterments

A | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
"B | Nature of material contracts/arrangements/transaction
C | Duration of the material contracts/arrangements/transaction NOT
D Salient terms of the material contracts or arrangements or APPLICABLE
E
F

ETEES
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3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of business:

SL.,
No.

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

O |"|@|>

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

NOT

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements
or transactions'

APPLICABLE

Date (s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

T QYT m

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

Place: Kochi-25
Date: 15.05.2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Kuttukaran Green Private Lmy
\ \é/ I/l’tw / O/

bveen—Phl |p John K. Paul
’(ﬁ ector) (Director)
DIN: 0001882 DIN: 00016513
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PHONE : OFFICE : 23168538, 2312960
E-mail : priceco@rgnprice.com
website : www.rgnprice.com

Offices at -

G-234, PRICE CHAMBERS
PANAMPILLY NAGAR
COCHIN - 682 036

CHENNAIL MUMBAI, BANGALORE. QUILON, CALICUT

Our Ref:

262025 15.05.2025
UDIN: 25226800BMIKNGBY9497

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF KUTTUKARAN
GREEN PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KUTTUKARAN PRE OWNED CARS
PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemeunts
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Siandalone financial statements of Kuttukaran Green
Private Limited (formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited) (“fhe
Compuny™) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, incluc g a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner ~o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted i India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March 2025, and
LOSS, Changes in kquity and its cash tlows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described i the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act. 2013 and the Rules thercunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these réquiremenls and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we hinve obtained 1~ sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.




Emphasis of Matter

(i) Attention is invited to Note No. 11 (Equity) of the financial statements on proposal of the
Board of Directors of the holding company Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for
divestment of its investment in the Company subject to other regulatory requirements.

{ii) We draw atiention to Note No. 34 on preparation of f{inancial statements as a going concern
even though the accumulated losses included Other Equity as on 31.03.2025 exceeds the
paid-up sharc capital of the Company as explained in detail in the said note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Information other than the financial
statements and auditors report thereon. The said information comprises the information included
in the Directors Report (Other information), but does not include the financial statements and our
audit report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditors” report

Our opinion on the financial ‘statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, otherwise appear to be materially misstated

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularitics: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and campleteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.




BRI LG R VN e R A

’1;"" .': A

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going conccxgﬁg&s‘gigsmg, as ﬂp%g%@l& matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but'to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
Process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to traud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accouniing policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
conlinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repott. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable. related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. - As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of [ndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
. far as it appeurs from our examination of those books.

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(]

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards spccified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis ol the written representations received from the directors taken on record by the
Board of Dircctors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate Report in
Annexure A. ’

¢. No managerial remuneration was paid during the year and hence reporting on compliance with
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and. Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opiiiion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:. : ‘
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The Company does not have any pending litigations as on the date of balance sheet.
i e R

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. ’

(1) The management, as explained in Note No.35(a) of the financial statements, has
represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(*Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(ii) The management, as explained in Note No.35(b) of the financial statements, has
represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or othefwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(i) Based on such audit procedures. that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

M. No. 226800,FR. No. 0027855




ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KUTTUKARAN GREEN PRIVATE LIMITED FORMERLY KUTTU
PRE OWNED CARS PRIVATE LIMITED) ( TTURARAN

1) Fixed Assets .

(@) (A) The Company has maintained records showing particulars of Property, Plant and
Equipment including quantitative details and situation. The Company is in the process of
updating the same.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets. '

(b) These Properties, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical
verification.

{t) The Company does not own any immovable properties other than improvements to leasehold
buildings.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipmient during the year.

(¢} As per the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

i1} Inventories

(a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of stock
were not material having regard to the size of the operation of the company.

(b) The company has been sanctioned /renewed working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets during the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
furnished to us. the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

i) Investments/Loans/Advances and Guarantees

During the year, the company has not made any investments in or provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies. firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties other than those given in the
normal course of business. Accordingly. none of the subclauses under this heading are applicable.
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iv) Compliance with_Sec 185 and Sec 186

In our opinion and according to lheﬁx;ghfgrmgtion andqg{,\" iag‘%tions given to us, the company had
. (RO T MRS .

not granted any loans to parties to whom provisions of Sec 185 applies and consequently clauses

relating to terms and conditions of loan, payment of interest and repayment of principal and status

of overdue are not applicable.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not made any investments, guaranices during the year to which the provisions of Section 185 and

186 of the Companies Act 2013 applies.

v) Fixed Deposits

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits to which the provisions of Section 73
to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under applies.

vi) Cost Records
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013, for the company.

vii) Statutory Dues

(a) The company was generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues towards Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods &
Service Tax. duty of customs. cess and other statutory dues, wherever applicable. There were
no arrears of undisputed statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the company, there were no disputed statutory dues outstanding
as on the date of balance sheet

viit) Undisclosed Income
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under'the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) Repayment of | .vans

(a) In our opiniun and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not defaulted in repayment of interest and principal to any lender.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the company is not declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender;




(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for
which they were obrained.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us, ‘and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that
the company has used funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs. 24.95 million for
Jong-term purposes during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on accouni of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities

held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

x) Application of funds raised through public offer

(a) The company has not raised any funds through public offer during the year.

(b) The company has not rafsed any funds during the year by way of preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally

convertible).
xi) Frauds

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud, on or by the company,
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) As no fraud, on or by the company, has been noticed or reported during the year, reporting
under this clause as per section 143(12) is not applicable.

(¢) As represented 1o us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by

the company during the year.

xii) Nidhi Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not
a nidhi company and hence this clause in not applicable to the company.

xiii) Related Party Transactions

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever
applicable and the details have peen disclosed in the financial statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.
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Being a wholly owned subsidiary, the provisions of Séctiou 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable. ’

. . W et Rt vivs
xiv) Internal Audit

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company is not required to have an internal
audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013

(b) Since the company is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of
Companies Act 2013, reporting under this clause on whether the internal audit report was

considered by the statutory auditor is not applicable.

xv} Non-Cash Transactions

As explained to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
other persons during the year

xvi) Registration with RBI

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

xvii) Cash Losses

Ihe company has incurred cash losses in the [inancial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year amounting to Rs.5.79 million and Rs.2.20 million respectively.

xviii} Resiunation of Auditor

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause
is not applicable.

xix) Going Concern

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans explained in detail vide Note No.34 and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.




\x) Corporate Social Responsibility

The company was not required to spend any amount towards CSR and hence reporting under this

clause is not applicable. .

xxi) Observations by component auditors

The company docs not have any subsidiary Companies and hence reporting under this clause is
not applicable.

For R.G.N. PRICE. & CO.
Chartered Ac ts

M. No. 226800,FR. No. 0027855
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN
DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
KUTTUKARAN GREEN PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KUTTUKARAN
PRE OWNED CARS PRIV ATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kuttukaran Green
Private Limited (Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of
March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the vear ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instituie of Chartered
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
tinancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Swandards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and eva.]ualmg the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Jjudgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

Iy pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 10 permit
preparation of financi
principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

al statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

liherent Limitatious of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

QOpinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of € hartered Accountants of India”. :

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered A foﬂnts

Partne;
M. No. 226800,FR. No. 0027855
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KUTTUKARAN GREEN PRIVATE LINMITED (FOI RLY KUTTUKARAN PRE OWNED CARS PRIVATE LIMITED),
ESTIMATED STATEMENT O TALINCOME FORMIMEASSESSMENT YEAR 202526
PERIOD ENDED 31.03,3025 PAN :AAGCK6365F
STATUS-COMPANY

KOCHI 25.

INCOME FROM BUSINESS

Loss as per Statement of Profit and Laoss (1,42,94,947)

Add: Inadmissibles »
Disallowance - ROC Fee for increasing Authorised Capital 75.000
Depreciation considered separately (excluding depreciation

on RoU Asset) 1356433
Provision for doubtful debts 3,72.527
Pravision for gratuity 2,55,828
Provision for leave encashment 1,48.966
Interest cost of Gratuity as per Actuarial Valuation 18,730
Ind AS Adjustments {Refer Note 2 below) 345,686 27.73,190
(1,15,21,757
Less: Admissibles
Depreciation as per IT Rules 28,13.839
Contribution to LIC gratuity fund 56,160
Interest on Income Tax refund considered separately 29,108
Deduction under section 35D - Year 4 - ROC Fee 59,090.00
Deduction under section 35D - Year | - ROC Fee 15,000.00
Deduction under section 35D - Yuar 2 - ROC Fee 15,000.00 29,87.997
(1,45.09.753)
INCOME FROM OTHER SQURCES
Interest on Income Tax refund 29,108
" Loss (1.44,80,647)
Tax Due Nil
Less: TDS/TCS 3,11.793
Refund Due 3,11,793
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1} Bank account details
Account No.
Bank Naine
Account Type
IFSC

2) Ind AS adjustment charged to Profit & Loss

7246809244

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
Current

KKBKO00G592

Place: Kochi
Date:

Kuttukaran Green Private L
Formerly Kuttukaran Pre O\vne?
CIN: U50400KL20171’1 CO:

o~

f

John K Pnu(
Director
DIN: 06016513

mi (l
rs Private Lmﬁtcd

Item Amount
Ind AS 109
Depreciation on ROU Asset - Note 23 1.71,053
Interest Expense on Compuisorily Convertible Preference Shares 2,85,445
Less: hrterest Income on rent depoxu (inuluded in Interest on rent deposits - Note n0.18) 1,15,798 3.40,700
ind AS 116
Interest Expense on lease liability - Nowe 22 14,49.871
Depreciation on ROU Asset - Note 23 33,39,541
Less: Accrued rent expense for the year 47,84,427 4,985
: TOTAL 3,45,686
3) The following loss may be carried forward
AY 2018-19  Busincss Loss 81,961
AY 2019-20  Business Loss 44,843
AY 202021  DBusiness Loss 1,13,700
AY 2021-22  Businuss Loss 41,533
AY 202223 Business Loss 51,44,363
AY 202223 Unabsorbed Depreciation 7,34,046
AY 2023-24  Business Loss 93.44,749
AY 202324  Unabsorbed Depreciation 15.55.732
AY 2024-25  Business Loss 58.54.264
AY 2024-25  Unabsorbed Depreciation 22.48.074
AY 2025-26  Business Loss 1,16,67.008
AY 2025-26  Unabsorbed Depreciation 28,13,639
4} Deduction under section 35D is claimed as per ITAT decision in 154 ITD 103.
,‘\sse’ssmcm Particulars Amount Deduction u/s 35D Bnln-ncc .‘0 be claimed Year
Year in Inter years
2022-23 ROC Filing Fees 295,450 59,090 2,36,300 | Year |
2023-24 Balance Amount 2,36,360 39,090 1,77,270 | Year 2
2024-25 Balance Amount 1,77.270 59,090 1,138,180 | Year 3
2025-26 Balance Amount 1.18,180 39,090 59,090 | Year 4
§) Deduction under section 35D is clmimed as per ITAT decision in 154 1TD 163,
Assessment Particulars Amount Deduction u/s 35D Bnln.nce to be claimed Year
Year in later years
ROC Filing Fees for
2024-25 Enhancement of Authonsed 75.000 15,000 60,000 | Year ]
share capital :
2025-26 Balance Amount 60,000 15,000 45,000 | Year 2
ROC Filing Fees for
Enhancement of Authunised 15.000 66,000 | Year !
2023-26 share capital 75,000
for and on behalf of the Board f Directors of

Naveen Philip

Director

DIN: (00018827

.
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Kutt  .ran Green Private Limited
{Foarmerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limued)
Balunce sheet
(All amounts in INR millions)

At At
Particulars Note As ut . Asat
i 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Assets
Non-turrent assels
Property, plant and equipment 4 17.56 16.98
Right-of-use assels 31 12.74 16.08
Intangible assels K 0.06 0.03
Financial assets

Other financial assets 10 : 119 6.96

Deferred tax assets (net) P . 1025 Y670

Other non-current assets 6 - 0.61 Q.53
Total non-current assets 48.42 4729
Current assets
Inventories 7 2118 1350
Financial assels

Trade reccivables 8 11.34 7

Cash and cash equivaleats 9 0.38 11.26
Income tax asseis (net) 25 (.54 0.96
Other current assets 6 1.85 2.27
Total current assels 35.30 35.10
Total assets 83.72 82.39
Equity snd liabiities
Equity
Equity share capilal 11 9.40 5.10
Other equity (13.3]) v (8.12)
Total equity (3.91) (3.02)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
Financial habilities

Borrowings 12 : 1317 33.31

Lease liabilities 31 1092 14.82

Provisions 14 0.83 0.36
Total non-current lishilities 24.92 48.49
Current liabilities
Financial linbilities

Borrowings 12 3433 0.88

Lease labilities 31 393 337

Trade payables 16

- Total oulstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.14 0.23
- Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and simall enterprises 16.86 6.59

Other finuncial Habilities 13 . an v LO2
Provisions 14 0.09 .05
Other current liabilities 15 6.64 24.79
Total current liabillties 62.71 3692
Total linbilites §7.63 85.41
Total equity and linhilities 83.72 82.39
NMaterial aceounting policies 1-3

The accompanying notes 4 to 32 form an integral partof the Financial Statcments
As per owr report of even date atieched
Far R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered A ants

SH ) ﬁml

Partne
M, No. 226800,FR. No. 0027855

Place: Koelid
Date: \S. 5 « Qoo

for and on behalf of the Board of Dirgetors of
Kuttularan Green Private Limite
{F orme:rl_\, Kuftukeran Pre Owned Cags Pfivate Lxmu

U aﬂJOOkL"m TPTGEMY442 -
WM’"“ "}r

Joln K Paul \.wcen Philip
Director Director
DIN:00016513 DIN:0001 8827

../
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Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited}

Statement Of Financial Results For Year Ended 31st March 2025
(All amounts in INR millions) :

Particulars Note
Income

Revenue from operations 17
Other income ) 18
Total income

Expenses

Purchases of Stock in Trade : 19
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 20
Employee benefits expense 21
Finance costs 22
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23
Other expenses 24

Total expenses

{Loss)/profit before fax
Tax expense
Deferred tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Income Tax relating to ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

(Loss)/ profit per share (equity share of face value of INR 140 each)
Basic in Rupees
Diluted in Rupees

1-3

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes 4 to 32 form an integral part
of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered Ac tants
SHY.

EVAN
partner,

4. No. 226800,FR. No. 0027858

Place: Kochi
Date: 159 fwy

For the year ended

DIN:00016513

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Audited Audited
139.87 243.57
N 447 1.25
144.34 244.82
126.13 206.23
. (10.04) 8.19
20.49 19.16
6.25 6.28
5.10 5.07
10.70 9.22
. 158.63 254.14
(14.29) (9.32)
(3.52) 2.07)
. (10.78) (7.25)
0.15 0.02
0.04 0.01
(10.89) {7.26)
- (14.19) 41.15)
_ (14.19) (41.15)
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kuttukaran Green Private Limited
(Formerly KuttukaranPre Ov hed Cars Private Limited)
CIN : U5S0400K1.2017PTC4R442
%4 A ¢
f] / w/{ .
John X Paul Naveen Plfilip d
Director Director
DIN:00018827
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Kutw.«aran Green Private Limited )
{Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Cash Flow statement
(All amounts in INR Millions)

SR VY

ST

G SRR

s

. For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31 March
Particulars March 2025 2024

Casht flows from operating nctivities
Profit/{ Loss) before tax (14.29) (9.32)
Finance charges 6.25 628
Depreciation 510 . 507
Increase in Capital Reserve - -
Miscellancous Income (Non-cash items) {3.73) {1.13)
Provision for bonus 045 0.75
Gain on disposal of lease - 0.1}
Provision for doubtful debts 0.37 0.00
Provision for Gratuity 0.26 1.25
Provision for leave encashment 0.15 -
Provision for Ieave encashment written back - {0.03)
Operating Profit hefore working eapital changes (5.40) 3.03
{Increase)decrzase in inventories (7.68) 36.98
(Increase)decrease in trade receivables (4.60) (3.49)
(Increase)/decrease in other cwirent assels 0.42 {1.27)
Increase /(decrease jin trade payable 10.18 (23.50)
Increase «(decrease Jin other current liabilities §15.43) 1.96
Cash generated from/ (used) in operations {22.57) 11.71
Taxes paid, net of relund received - 0.42 (0.08)
Net cash generated fromy (used) in operating activities (A) 22.15) 11.64
Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment {2.21) (3.23)
Other non current assers {0.35) (1.21)
Seeurity deposit 0.12) (0.73)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2.67) {7.17)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares - 5.60
Conversion of Intercorporate Loan to Equity Shares 10.00 -
Increase (decrease Jin borrowings 118 (19.67)
Increase {(decrease Jin other financial habilities 0.21 {149
Intercorporate Loan 11.84 29.74
Lease & Rent payments during the year (4.78) (4.54)
Interest Paid (4.50) (4.45)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 13.95 4.58
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (10.88) 9.05
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11.26 2.22
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.38 1126

{Refer 1o note 7 - Cash and Cash Equivalents)

The notes referred 10 above form an integral part of the standalone cash flow statement

As per our repont of even date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

M. No. 226800,FR. No. 0027855

Place: Kochi

Date: 15+ Qo

John K Paul

2t p—F

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kuttukaran Green Privaie Limit
{ Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Ow
CIN : U3S0400K12017PTCO4¢44,

od

ed Cars Priwuz,l:im'&sl )

——

Naveen Philip
Director
DIN: 00018827

Director
DIN: 00018513




Kutiukaran Green Private Limited

(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Cash Flow statement (Continued...)

(Al amounts in INR Millions)

Reconciliation of financial liabilities forming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS 7

Non Cash Change
Particulars Asat Cash Flows | Fair vValue |- ness Asat31
1 April 2024 i Others . | March 2023
Changes
Non - Current Borrowings® 3145 (18.84) 12.61
Current Borrowings - 31.86 31.86
Lease Liabilities (refer note 31) 18.19 (3.33 14.86
Non Cash Change
Particulars As at Cash Flows | Fair Yalue £ As at31
1 April 2023 . Others March 2024
Changes
Non - Current Borrowings® 13.36 18.08 3145
Current Borrowings 8.02 8.02) -
Lease Liabilities (refer note 31) 15.18 3.01 18.19

* includes current maturities of long term borrowings

As per our report of even date attached

Partner
t4. No. 226800, FR. No. 0027855

Place: Kochi
Date: 135 - Q02%

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited
( Formerly Kurtukaran Pr Owned Cars Private Limited)

CIN : U5S0400K12017P

)% 2t p—

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513

19442

\
() LLi v

ecn’
Du‘ectm

DIN: 00018827
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Kuttakaran Green Private Limited
{Fornmnerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Fimited)
Statement of Changes in Equity

jord

. o EETC TN 5 By
{All amounts in INR millions) . . "
Equity share capital : ) : -

Particulars Notes Equity Amount
shures
Balance as at 1 Aprilt 2024 509,950 510
Changes in equity share capital during the period 11 4,30,293 4.30
Balance as at 31 Marclh 2028 940,243 9.40
Balanee as at 1 April 2023 10,000 0.10
Changes in equity share capital during the period 1 4,99.950 5.00
Balance as nt 31 March 2024 509,950 5.10
Other equity
Equity Reserves and sarplus Ttems of other "
Component of . compreheasive Total other equity
Particulars Compound - . Remeasurement of net ateributable to equity
Financial Securities | General Rctnfmd defined benefit linbility/ |} holders of the Company
. premdum | reserve | enrnings -
Instrument {asset), net of tax

Balance as at | April 2024 12.73 (20.74) {0.12) - 812
Loss for the period (10.78) {10.78)
other comprehensive income, net of tax {0.11) (0.11)
Total compreliensive inconte (10.89)
Seenritics premium 5.70 3.70
Balance as at 31 March 2025 ~12.73 370 - (31.51) 0.23) (13.30)
Balance as at 1 April 2023 12,73 (13.49) (0.10) (0.86)
Loss for the perind . . {7.25) (7.25)
other comprehensive income, net of tax ~ {0.02) (0.02)
Totul comprehensive income (7.26)
Securities premium -
Balnnice as at 31-March 2024 1173 - - [ L) (0.12) {8.12)

The destription of the nature and purpose of ench reserve within equity is as follows:

1} Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the promium received on issue of shares. {t is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Represents preminm arising out of 4,30,293 cquity shares of Rs 10°- each at a premsium of Rs 13.24% during FY 24.25

2) General reserve .

General reserve is used from time to time 1o transfer profits from retained earmngs for appropriate purposes.

3) Retained carnings

This represents the profits / losses of the Company earned il date, net of appropriations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
for and an behalf of the Board of Diregiors of
Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

M. No. 226800,FR. No. 0027855

Plaee: Kochi Jolin K Paul Naveen Philip
Date: V58 «Qmay” Director Director
DIN: 00016513 DIN: 00018827
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Kuttukaran Green Private Limited
“~Cormerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)

1.

3.1

Company overview

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited (formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited) was
incorporated in 2017 as a Private Limited Company. The Company is carrying on business as authorized
dealers for sales and service of Piaggio electric vehicles.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited whose financial
statements are prepared in accordance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 {(the Act), as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act. Consequently, these financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015. Further, being a subsidiary of a listed public
company, this Company is also deemed to be a public company.

Details of Company s material accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cases where ever fair
value is applicable. ’ '

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the financial staiements.
Material accounting policies

.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs,
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

=

C.

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated, impairment, losses, if any. Cost of an item of propety,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, mcludmc import duties and non-refundable purchase
laxes, road taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located. o .
The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

Expenditure on construction, renovation, interior decoration of leased building is capitalized in the year in
which construction or renovation is completed.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate ilems (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown
under Other Non-current assets. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at each balance
sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of those fixed assets that necessarily take a substantial period to
get ready for their intended use, arc capitalized. Other borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognized in the
profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful lives of assets.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of Assets Previous Life Revised Life
Building 60

Plant and Machinery 15

Electrical Equipment’s 10

Office Equipment’s 5

Computer and Accessories 3

Motor Car 5

Motor Cycle 5

Furniture and Fittings 10

Tools & Equipment’s 13
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Kuttukaran Green Private Limited
~tormerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3.2

Intangible assets:

amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing
from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is-included in amortization in profit or
loss. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are

Class of assets Years

Software 3

Amortization method. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profil or loss as incurred.

Employce Benefits

Short-term emplayee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employec benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term
employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability 1s recognized for the amount expected o be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus,
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
Contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered
by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset fo the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payment is available.

The éompany is covered under the Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India for
future payments of Gratuity as determined on actuarial basis by LIC of India. The contribution is debited
to gratuity payable.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount.




Kuttukcn an Green Private Lxmn»d }Qﬁ;&fﬁg{g@- A
ormerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)

cefRAlRRRINE AR

LI

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

34

3.5

3.3 Employee Benefits (Continuoed)

s A )\\‘(‘8
The calculation of defined benefit obhaauon is performcd 'lnnually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense on
the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying. the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation a1 the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss.

Other long term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains or losses are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract, The
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision
is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue

Revenue on sale of vehicles is recognized when the risk and rewards 4re transierred to the customer and
is accounted net of sales tax, fame IT incentive and trade discounts, if any.

Charges collected towards Annual Maintenance Contract (AMC) at the time of sale is recognised as
revenue over the period of AMC contract on time proportion basis.

Inventories

is arrived at as follows:
a) Vehicles on Specific Identification Basis
b) Spares and Accessories on FIFO method
¢) Accessories and Batteries on FIFO method A
d) Goods in transit in respect of vehicles and spares are accounted in the 1ooks‘ apon billing and
dispatch of the same by the principal from their factory/ warehouse and are shown under the heads
inventories.




uttukaran Green Private Limited
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3.6

Financial instruments

3.6.1 Recognition and initial measurement

Tradé receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party 10
the contractual provisions of tle instruthent. . .

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or

issue.

3.6.2 Classification and subsequent measureinent

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or
fair value in other comprehensive income (FV' OCI. '

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost il it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investments fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies
in practice.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency. volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for de

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recogniia)
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3.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets that are held for tradinggrearesmanaged and-whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows arve solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liguidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. .

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial  assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profil or loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
Financial  assetsai interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.
amortized cost Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are

recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized
in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

Equity investments at | recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilitics are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition is
also recognized in profit or loss.
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3.6 Financial instruments (Continued)
3.6.3 De recoguition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
whicli the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are nol derecognized,

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially .different. In this case, a new financial lability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

3.6.4 Off setting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet

when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.6.5 Derivative financial instriments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to inilial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

3.7 Impairment
3.7.1  Impairment of financial instrunents

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred..

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an améunt equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. , s TN
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3.7 impairment (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit losses iyt «ive A e

Expecied credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write off.

3.7.2 Impairment of non- finaucial assets

3.8

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company reviews
at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized. '

Earnings/loss per share
The basic earnings/loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax for the year

auributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the vear.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average
number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the wei ghted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Dilutive potential equily shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued 3
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3.9

3.11

3.13

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cashflows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value

Preliminary Expenses
Preliminary Expenses are written off in the year of commencement of business.
Leases

Ind AS 116 has replaced existing leases standard with effect from 01.04.2019, Ind AS 17 Leases (Ind AS
17) and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both lessees and lessors. Tt introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes present value of the lease payment (discounted using incremental borrowing rate) as
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments and lease rent expense will be replaced with the amortization of right-
of use-asset and interest accrued on lease liability. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requirements for lessees and will have consequential impact on cash flows categories as well. The new
standard substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Company has applied the provisions of this standard only in respect of those lease agreements other
than short term leases. Where the non-cancellable period in the lease agreements entered into by the
Company are for a period of less than one year, such leases fall within the meaning of short-term lease as
per the standard and thus qualifies for exemption as per para 51to0 8 of Ind AS 116. Accordingly, this
standard is not applied for short term leases. v

Recognition of Interest Income or Interest Expense

Interest income other than received from banks is recognized on effective interest rate basis and Interest
Income from banks are based on statement received from banks.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.
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3.14 Income Tax . b et S
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only 1o the extent that it has sufficient iaxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets ~ unrecognized or
recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assel is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax cbnsequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
ofits assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different 1ax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and

assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

3.15. Prior Period Items

Expenses/income less than Rs. 5,00,000, if any, are not treated as prior period items as they are not
material considering the scale of operations of the company. Further, expense / income relating to
earlier years which crystallised during the year are not treated as prior period items.
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{All amounts in Indian Rupees million}
4 Property. plant and equipment and cupitat work-in-progress

Particulars

Gross Cﬂl‘l’\’jllg value
Balance as at 1 April 2024
Additions

Disposals / capitalisations
Balance as at 31 March 2025

Balance as nt 1 April 2023
Additions )

Disposals / capitalisations
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2024

Accumulnted depreeiation

Balance as at | April 2024
Depreciation for the year
Disposals / write ofT

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Bulance as at 1 April 2023
Depreciation for the year
Disposals / write off

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Net gnrrving amount
As at 31 Mareh 2023
As at 31 March 2024

(#) RCP}'CSI:II(S impro

Land & Motor Office Furniture and  Computer & Electrical Tools and Total
Building Vehicles  Lquipments Fittings Accessories Equipment Equipment ota
12.99 347 0.05 0.90 115 0.29 0.30 19.15
¢:19 1.90 5.01 - 0.00 - 0.05 2.15
13.18 5.37 006 0.90 1.13 0.29 0.35 21.25
9.84 217 6.04 0.33 0.98 0.29 0.28 13.92
3.16 1.30 (.01 0.57 0.17 - .02 3.23
12.99 347 0.05 0.90 1.15 0.29 0.30 19.15
0.38 0.96 0.03 0.08 0.60 0.05 0.07 2.17
0.20 0.90 0.00) 0.1t 0.34 0.02 {0.02) 1.56
.57 1.87 0.03 .19 0.94 0.08 0.06 3.73
0.17 0.46 0.02 0.03 0.25 0.02 0.03 0.99
0.2} 0.50 .01 0.05 0.35 0.03 0.04 1.8
0.38 0.96 0.03 0.08 0.60 0.05 0.07 217
12.61 3.50 0.03 (.72 0.21 .21 0.29 17.56
12.62 2.51 0.02 0.43 0.55 .23 0.22 16.98

ts on lease hoid buildings

Particnlars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Gross block

Net Block

Gross block Net Block

Building

13.18

12,61

12,98 12.62

Ay
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) o T

5 Intangible assets )

Particulars. Software

Reconciliation of carrying amount
Gross carrying amount

Balance as at | April 2024
Additions
Disposals / capitalisations

Total

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions
Disposals / capitalisations

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2024
Amortisation for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Amortisation for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Net carrving amount

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

0.14 0.14
0.07 0.07
0.20 .20
0.14 0.14
0.14 0.14
0.12 0.12
0.03 0.03
0.15 0.15
0.07 0.07
0.05 0.05
0.12 0.11
0.06 0.06
0.02 0.03
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(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

6 Other assets
Non-current
Unsecured. consigered goad
Prepayments
Eamest Money Deposit

Current

Unsectred. comsadered good

Advances other than capiral advances

Prepayments

Balance with Govt Authorities

Payment to vendors for supply of goods and services
Other Receivables

~1

taventaries

(Vaked at lower of cast and realisable vaive)
New vebicles

Spares and Accessones

Less: Provision for obsoleie mventory

Goods In frmsy

@2

Frade receivables
Current
Linsecured .
Others
(@) Which have significant merease in eredit mh
(b} Credit impaired

(c ) Others
Considered good
Less: Allowances for expeeted credit loss
Net Trade Receivable

Trade receivnble apeing schedule
As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March

Asat 31 Narch

2025 2024

G 37 . w31
025 . 035
9.61 0.55
c 033 050
4.20 0.07
1.29 1467
.04 003
1.88 2.27
247 2.82
15.79 5.69
281 2.88
18.60 8,57
- 0.01
18.60 8.56
258 4.94
2518 1350
688 0.00

.37 -
1.35 Q.00
1636 ER B

- 4.37 -
11,34 7.11

More 3
Particulars Less than 6 months| 6 months to 1 year| [-2years }2-3years 10:;:1:::1 Tatat
YRR 1 Tro i « sidh .
DU 1 Trade ed goud 1036 10.36
ipUndisputed Trade Receivables - which bave sipnuficant inerease
credit risk 0.22 0.0l 0.45 .98
iisUndisputed Trade Receivables - credit anpaired o ot 0.06 037
160,79 0.71 0.21 - - 1871
As at 31 March 2024
More th
Particulars Luss than 6 months| & months to 1 year] -2 years 2.3 years ! :;:"l:" 3 Tatal
Mind " bl i dated wore
11 P Trade recoival et 711 7.4
i)Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have sigmficant increase in
credit risk 0.60 .00
it indisputed Trade Receival fes - credit impared
7.1 300 - -~ - .11
9 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances in current accounty R XS 112
Cash on hand - 014 ~ 016
tn Cash Credit sccounts s 1.3
Balance i deposit acceunts ~ - - 877
Cash and cash equivatents in balance sheet 038 11.26
Bouk overdrafis used for cash manageniens purposes
Cash and cash cquivalents fn the statement of cash flows 038 11.26
16 Other fissncial ussels —
Nan-current
Unsecured. considered gond
Rent and other deposits 718 0.90
- 7.19 06.96




pE

Kuttukaran Green private Limtted
{Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Qwued ¢ ars Prvate Lumited)
Nates to the st dalone ¥ ial § i

1Al amounts and nuntbar af shares in Indian rupees miltion)

ts {0 4}

T e at 31 Morch 20235 As nt 31 Mareh 2024

{1 Equity share capltal Number of shares Anaunt *.7% Numper of shaves Amaunt ~
Authorised
Equity shases of INR10 each 2010000 20.10 1010000 10.10 ¢
preference Shares INR 1000 each 20000 20.00 20000 20.00
2030000 40.10 1030000 2010
{ssued, subscrived and paid-up i N
Eaquty shares of INR 105 each fully paid-ep 910243 9.40 509950 510
preference Shares ISR 1,000 each 15000 15.00 15000 15.00 ~.
935243 2440 524930 20.10

(i) The company isa 100% subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services timited

{1ty The company mcreased 1ts Autherised share capital Comprosing of 10,10,000 equity shares of Rs 101 96.10,000 cquity shares of Rs. 10/ each vide Resohation of
Dircctors in Board Mecting dated 121 122024, There 16 ne change in autherised capital of preference shares during the ysar. R
\

(i) The Company hesa single class of cquity shares. All the equity shares rank equaly with regard 1 dividends and share in the Company’s tesidual assels. The equity
hares are entitled 0 receive dividend as Jeclared from nme t© time. The votmg rights of an equity shareholder ot B poll {not o1 show of hands) are in proportion 10
share of paid-up equity capital of the Company. YOIng nghts cannal be exercised in respect of shares on which any zall or other sums presently paynhle have not been
paid. Failure 10 pay any smount called up on the shares may Tead to the forfeiture of shares. On winding up of (ke Company, the otders of the equity shares will be

cntitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after the distribution of all preferential gmounts i propartion t0 the nomber of cquity shares held. R

(iv) Issue of 4,30,29% Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach for cash at o price of Rs.23.24 pex Bty share aggregating 10 Rs.4.30 million thirough conversion of inter corporate
foan of Rs 1000 Miltion taken by e compeny from Popular V chicles and Services Liwited on the record dnte 25t August 2024 pursuant 1o the board resolution No.
B!\{OARDVOS-ZD’M-ZS passed by The Board of Directors of the company & their mesting held oo {&th August 2024.

Approvat of Divestalent

The Board of Dircctors of the holdmg compiny. Popular Vehicles and Services Limited, af its mecting teld on February 12, 2025, proposed (e divestment of il
investment in Katukaratt Green Privne Limited (KGPLL idering the company’s th | and operational perlormance. The Board of the Holding company granted
in-principle approval for divestment in the ssme s, in compliance with ap ticable reymlatory requi L

) Reconciliation of shares ouistanding ot the beglnning and at the end of

the reporting period
Equity shares of Rs. 10 eaci. Jully pasd-up
At the baginning of the yeor 509950 5.10 10000 0.10
Add: Shares issued during the year 430203 4,30 409950 500
At the end of the period 940243 9.40 509930 510
Preference shares of INR1 000 sach filiy paid-p '
At the beginning of the year {5400 15 13000 {5
Add: issucd during the year 0 0 0 Q
At the end of the period 15000 18 13000 15
)

Details of sharcholders lolding mare than 59 shaves of the Company As ot 31 March 2028 As at 31 March 2024
Equity shures of INRJU each fully paid-up Number of shares %o haldiog Number of shares % holding

- 09 in the class in the class
43 Popular Vehicles and Services Limited i 100% 05 100%

{c} Equity shares Tield by promaters
As at 31 Mareh 2025
Number of shares at

Change during the Number of shares as

period at period Ended s of total shares

Name of i promoters . the heginning of the
siod

@) Papular Velucles and Serviees Limited $.09.949 430293 9.40.242 99%
b} Naveen Philip (Nominee of Popular Vehicles and Services Lumited) i 0 1 1%

Asat 31 March 2024

N Nupiber of shares 8t eyapue during the Number of shares 33
Name of the promoters the beginat X 4 . 5 s

peginaing of the period at period En ded e af total sharss
2y Poputar Velicles nd Serviees Lismited 499,950 3,09.949 a9%

) Naveen Phitip (Nomines of poputar Vehicles and Services Limited) i

- 1 1%

) Preference Shares held by Pramoters

As at 31 Mareh 2025

Nuniber of shares at
the hopianing of the
eriod

Change during the Number of shares as
peciod at perlod Ended

wame of the promoters

¥, of total shares

a) Popular Vehicles and Services 1 anited 15000 0 13000 100%

As at 31 March 2024

Number of shares 88 ooy durd .
Name of the promoters the beginning of the ange during the RO ber of shaves &5
eriad period gt perlod Eaded

) Popular Vehicles and Services Limied 15000 ¢

4, of total shares
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12 Barrowings
Non-current
Secured
Compalsoniy {onvenible Preference Shases
Vehicle laans from financial institutions
Unszeured
inter-Corporate Loan

Current
Secured
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks
Carrent maturlties of long-term borrowings
1} Inter-Comporate loan
i) vehicle foans

Total borrawings

3) Details of securities, terms and conditions of borrowings from bitnks and financlal institations

As at 31 March 2025

Asat 31 March 2024

303 i ey

0.32 0.83

9.82 207
13.17 333t
31.86

247 0.88

102 0.26

045 0.62
3433 0.88
47.50 34.19

Lenders nanie Security terms

Nature of borrowinps

Tenure

Asat 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

“The prefe shares are pulsorily into such so : of
Equity Shares of the company x any ume between three months and
nineteen vears from the date of issue at the company’s option based on the
valuation of equity shares at the time of conversion. Management has
estimated time of conversion at the end of the ninteenth year.
Accordiagly, the fair value of borrowings has been estimated by
discounting the Face Value using a discount rate of return for sinular
penod and die remaining portion is allacated as equity component and
dtsclosed in of ch in equity

Popular Vehicles dnd
Services Limited

Compalsarily
Conventible Preference
Shares

18 Years, 11
Manths, 29 Days

3.03

"Secured by: {2y hypothecation of the Vehicle financed ; and (b personal
garintee by directos of the company. The loan is repavable in 24
instalments.

Sundaram Finance
Linicd

Vehicle Laan

2 Years

145

The Inrercorporate loan of 10 Mn carry an interest rate of 8.6%
respectively with a tenure of 5 years. Lender has the option of conversion
of outstanding loan and interest, whally or partially into Equity

Popular Vehicles and
Services Limited

inter-Corporate foan |

5 Years

Popular Vehicles and
Services Limiled

The intercorporate loan of Rs. 12 Mn carry an interest rate of 8.6%
[ 1y with a tenure of 6 years,

inter-Corporate loan

6 Yeats

.84

20

Exclusive first charge by way of bypothecation aver il present and furure
stock and receivables financed through the ¢-DFS fimit with the State
Bank of tndia mcluding advancs remitiances made 1o Mis Piageio
Vehicles Private Limited ont of the facility and equitable mongage aver
propeay situated at Calicut in the name of Mrs Kuttularan Trading
Ventures

State Bank of India

Inventory Funding

12 Months

1Li2

Cash Credit facifity from Kotak Mahindr Bank Limited is secured by
First aud exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and fature current
assets ol the Bommower except stock funded by IF banker and Extension of
equitable mortgage over praperties sittaated at Edappally owned by V.5
Kuttukaran Trading Ventures and m Thiruvananthapuram owned by MS

Kotak Mahindra Bank

Kuttukaran Homes LLP

Cash Credat

12 Months

2075

b) Borrowings from banks / financial imstitations camy mterest aites from 8.6 % 10 9.35% per mnum
) The Company has wutiltised the loans avaited for the purpose it was availed.

4} Issue of Equity shares in bew of agaiust conversion of witer corporate foan of Rs. 10.00 w:Hion taken by the company from Popular Vehicles and Servi

47.50

BMO4RO1:08-2024-25 passed by The Board of Disectors of the company at thair meeting held on 1oth August 2024, Refer Note 11 for more details

Borrowing fucilitivs gnd fifing of quarterly retursiy with the bankers

As 0t 31 Mureh 2025

The company has availed warking capital facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets and have submitted quartzrly seturns of current

The quarterly returms are matching with the books of accounts

As at 3] March 2024

The company has availed working capital tacdities from banks on the basis of secunity of current assets and have submitted quarterly retums of cument

The quartesly returns are mutching with the books of accounts

Reconciliation of Computserily Convertitile Preference Shares
Face Vatue of Compulsonly ¢ ible Profi < Shares
Equuty Component of Financial instrument

Accumulated Finanee Cost on labylity component

Inserest Expense for the perind recagnised in Staternent of Profit er §Loss

ices Limited pursuant to the board resolution No.

assets and current labilities 1o the bankers,

assets and current liabilities to the bankers.

15.00 15.00
{12.73) 1279
0,76 047
3.03 . 2,74
029 0.23
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13 Other finaneial Habifides
Current .
Accrued salanes and besefits . , 0.71 102
0.71 1.02
14 Provisions oy o E
Not-current ’ ) N
FProvision for emplovee Benchis - @
Provision for Gy 0.63 0.2
Compensated absences 8.20 Q.l¢
’ 0.83 . 0.36
Curremt
Provision for employee benefits
Campensated absenees . - 4.09 u.us
.09 0.03
0.92 0.40
15 Other iabilities
Carrent )
Contract liabilmies : .22 4.7%
Statutory dues payables G.1o 019
Other Lisbilitics . 378 1984
6.64 2479
6.64 24.79

The cantract Jiahilities pamisity relate to the advance sonsiderabion received from the customers for the puschase of vehicles, This will be recognised as reveaue as und when sthe Company mect the
performance obhigation by delivering the vehicles. Refer Note 17 for more densls,

16 Trade payables

Total cutstaading dues of micro enterprises nod small enterpnscs Qi 0.23
Total vutstanding dues of credaors other than mucrs enterprses snd small enteprises 15.56 .56
\ 17,01 N 6.82
Trade pavables ageing schedufe
As at March 31, 2023 Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payiment
Particulars Not due Less than 4 1-2 years . 2-3 years Mare than 3 Total
year years
MSME 0.14 0.14
Others 1513 1.63 008 16.86
Disputed dues - MSME -
Disputed dues - Others .
Tol - 15.28 1.68 0.08 - 17.m
As at March 31, 2024 QOutstanding for the PoHgwing periods from the due date of pavment
Particulars Not dae Less than { 1-2 years 2-3 years Mere thim 3 Total
year years
MSME 0.23 9.22
Others 6.34 005 [ ]
Disputed dugs - MSME -
Disputed dues - Cthers .
Toual - 6,54 0.28 - - 6.82
The principal amoust remuining vopaid to any suppler as st the end of the year G.44 023
The interest due un the principal ini tending s at the end of the year . .

The amoant of interest paid under the Act, along with 1he xmounts of the payment made bevond the appointed day during the 3
The amount of inierest duc nnd payable for the peried of delay m making payment (which have heen pad but beyond the
appeinted day daring the year) but without adding de merest specified under the Act.

The amount of interest scerved end romaining wnpaid a7 15¢ ead of the vear .

the amount ol dusther intencst remaning die 20d poyalie even 1 fhe suceRdiag wears. unti such date when the saterest dues
25 above are actaadly paid 1 the small enterprise, for the purpose of disall as 8 deductible espend; under the Act - B




Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particalars
. 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
17 Revenue from operations
Sale of produets
Sales of new vehicles h 109.28 222.56
Sale of Spares and Accessories 11.64 10.38
- 120.92 232.94
Sale of services . 1.83 408
128.75 . 237.02
Other operating revenues
Income from schemes and incentives 6.90 2.52
Finance and insurance cominission 1.80 1.77
Other operating income 2.41 - 226
11.11 6.55
139.87 243,57
Reconeiliation of revenue from sale of products and services
Gross revenue _ . 142.77 243.92
Less: Discount allowed 2.90 0.35
139.87 243,57

(A) Disaggregate of revenue information
The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the below years ended by offe:
depicts liow the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cashflows are effected by industry, m

. ’ For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Revenue By nature
Sales of New Vehicles 109.28 222,56
Others 30.59 ) 21.01
139.87 243.57

For the year ended For an1e
Particulars or the year en or the year ended

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Revenue by contract type _
Fixed price 139.87 1243.57
139.87 - 243,57

(B) Contract balanees
The following table provides information about trade receivables and contract liabilities from contract with custon
For the vear ended TFor the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Trade receivables 11.34 7.1
Contract liabilities 0.73 4,75

(C) Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations th

For the year ended For the year ended
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Within 1 year — 0.73

More than 3 years S

Closing balance

Particulars

B 0.73
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18 Other income
Interest Income .. 0.03
Interest Income on Rent Deposits (Notional) . g ﬂ 0.12 . 012
Liabilities no longer required written back S T ) 3.62 1.09
Other non operating income 0.67 '
Provision for leave encashment written back - A 0.03
Interest on IT Refund 0.03 0.01
4.47 1.25
19 Purchases of stock-in-trade .
New vehicles « 11401 - 196.49
Spares and Accessories 12,02 9.74
126.13 206.23
20 Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening inventory 8.56 16.75
Closing inventory. . 18.60 8.56
' (10.04) 8.19
21 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and allowances . 18.29  16.28
Contribution to provident and other funds - 135 - L34
Provision for Leave encashment 0.15 .
Provision for Gratuity . 0.26 1.25
Staff welfare expense 0.45 0.29°
20.49 19,16
22 Finance cost
Interest on bank borrowings 4.38 445
Interest on lease liabilities : 1.45 1.59
Interest on Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 0.29 0.23
Corporate Guarantee commission - 0.11
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation 0.02 0.01
' 6.25 6.28
23 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment . 156 1.18
Amortisation on intangible assets . 0.03 . 0.03
Amortisation ROU 3.51 - 3.84
5.10 : 5.07
24 Other expenses
Rent 3.23
Advertising and sales promotion 1.20
Power, water and fuel 1.14
Travelling and conveyance 1.19
Housekeeping and security and other contract charges 0.36
Office expenses ' 0.76
Communication : 0.39
Pre-delivery charges . 0.03
Repair & Maintanance - Others ' ) 0.16
Rates and taxes 0.17
Transportation charges 0.28
Bank charges . 019
Insurance 0.43
Legal and professional 0.52
Commission 0.24
Miscellaneous expenses . 0.03
Impairement Loss on trade Receivables and contract assets - 037
’ ,»//:‘: ?‘«t\\_\ — 10.70 o
S
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Kuttukaran Grden Private Limited
(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Car< Private Limited)

25 Notes to the financial statements (contnued}

(All amounts v INR millions}

Particulars

As a1 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Taxes

Income Taxes

A) Income tax assets/(linbility)
Income 1ax asscts {net)

0.54 0.96
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 0.54 0.96
B} Deferred tax assets/(lHabilities)
Deferred iucome tax assets L
I.eave Encashment 0.07 0.04
impact of IndAS 116 0.53 9.53
Carry forward losses 9.98 6.30
Provision for gratuity . 0.16 0.07
Provision for doubtful debts 0.09
Remcasurement of Net Defined Benefit Asset 0.08 0.04
33D Disallowance 0.04 0.06
Provision for cmployee benefits 0.17 0.23
Total deferred income tax assets 1113 7.26
Deferred income tux liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and computer software .88 (.37
Total deferred income tox liabilities 0.88 .37
Deferred incotne tax assets after set off ~ 10.25 v 670
Deferred 1ax 10.25 6.70
{iii) Movement in femporary differcuces
) Recogaised Chargel {credit)]  Charge/ {credit) in
Movement during the year ended 31 March 2025 As at through in the statement | other comprehensive Asat
’ mee 1 April 2024 retained 31 March 2025
. of profit and loss
earning
Provision for employee benefits 023 (0.06) 0.17
Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Asset 0.04 0.04 0.08
35D Disallowance 006 {0.02}) 0.04
Provision for gratuity 0.07 0.09 0.16
Provision for doubt{ul debts - 0.09 0.09
Leave Encashment [R{XS 0.64 0.07
Lcase liahilities, impact on accourt of Ind AS 116 0.33 0.00 0.53
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under
Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act, 4{).57} {0.31) (0.88)
2013
Carry forword of Losses 6.30 3.68 9.98
Net deferred tax asset/ (liabifity) at the end of the year 6,70 < 352 0.04 10.25
Recognised Charge/ (eredit){  Charge/ (credit) in
NMovement during the year ended 31 March 2024 As at through in the statement | other comprehensive Asat
- = 1 April 2023 retained 31 March 2024
) of profit and loss
earning

Provision for employee benefits 815 0.07 0.23
Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Asset (.03 0.01 0.04
35D Disallowance 0.06 0.06
Provision for gratuily 0.07 0.07
Provisien for doubiful debts - -
Leave Encashment .04 {0.01) 0.04
Lease lhabilities, impact on account of Ind AS 16 .35 0.18 0.53
Excess of depreciation on property. plant and equipment under
Income Tax Act, 1961 aver depreciation under C ompanies Act, {0.32) (0.2%) {0.57)
2013
Carry furward of Losses 4.36 1.94 6.30
Net deferved. tux asset/ (liability) at the end of the year 4.62 - 2.06 0.01 6.70
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)'

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Earnings per share
A. Basic and Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose

of basic earnings per share calculations are as follows:

i) Net profit attributable to equity share holders

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Net profit for the year, attributable to the equity share holders (A)

(10.89) (7.26)

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic and diluted)#

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year {Refer note 11) 5,09.950.00 10,000.00
Conversion of Inter Corporate Loan to Equity 4,30,293.00
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding
during the period/year ( B)  7,66,946.92 1,76,500.00
Earnings per share, basic and diluted (A/B) (14.19) (41.15)

27

Auditors’ remuneration (net of soods and service tax
B

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Statutory Audit 0.13 0.06
Tax Audit 0.01
Other Maiters 0.04
Total 0.14 0.10
28 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of purchase and sales of vehicles and related services. The entire operations are
organised and managed as one organisalional unit with the same set of risks and returns, hence the same has been
considered as representing a single primary segment. The company renders its services in India only and does not have
any operations in economic environments with different risks and returns; hence it is considered operating in a single
geographic segment. Accordingly no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements




Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes 10 the financial statements {continued)

(All amounts in INR in millions)

29 Employcee benefits

A Defined contribution plan

The company makes contributions, determined specified percentage of employees salaries, in respect of
qualifying employees towards provident fund and other funds which are defined contribution plans. The
company has no obligation other than to make specified contributions. The contributions arc charged o the

statement of profit and loss as they acerue.

B Defined Benefit Plan

The company operales certain post-employment defined benefit plan which is provided for based on actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The company accrues
gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 19720 Gratuity Act).

Based on an actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, following table sets out the status-of the benefit plan
and the amounts recognised in the company's standalone finaficial statements as at balance sheet date.

Reconciliation of the projected Defined benefit plan

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31
2025 Mareh 2024

Defined Benefit Plan 0.63 0.26
Plan Asstts 0.98 0.86
Net Defined benefit Hability/(Asset) (0.35) {0.60)
Liability for compensated absences - 0.29 0.14
Total employee benefit liability / (Asset) (0.06) (0.45)
Non-current defined benefit Liability 0.20 0.10
Current defined benefit liability 0.09 0.05

C Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets)/liability
iReconciliation of present values of defined benefit obligation

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening halances to the closing

benefit {asset)/Liability and its components

balances for net defined

Balance at the end of the year

TR . Asar31 March As at 31
Particulars .
2025 March 2024

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 0.26 0.09
Current service cost 0.20 0.14
Past scrvice cost
Interest cost 0.02 0.0t
Benefits paid N ’
Re-mensurements '
Actuarial Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income
-changes in financial assumptions ' 002 {0.01}
-changes in experience over the past period 0.13 0.03
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year .63 - D.26

Particulars As at 31 March Asat 3l

2025 March 2024
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 0.86 0.47
Contributions paid intothe plan 0.06 0.35
Benefits paid -
Intercst income 0.06 0.04
Re-measurements -
- changes in demographic assumptions -
- return on plan asset {0.00) 0.01
Balance at the end of the year 098 0.86
Movement in Asset Ceiling
- Opening Value of Asset Ceiling 0.20 0.13
Interest on upening balance ol asset ceiling 0.01 0.0
- Change in Assct Ceiling (0.21) 0.07
0.01 0.20
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Employee benefits (continued) )
i} Reconcifiarion of present value of plan asseis

D Expenses recognised in the standalone statement’of prolit and loss
(i) Expenses recognised in ihe standalone statement of profit and loss

Particulars “Asai 31 March As at 31
. 2035 Marel 2024

Current service cost 0.20 0.14
Past service cost . S . -
Net interest on net defined liability (0.03) (0.02)
Employer contribution - -
Net gratuity cost 0.17 0.12
(ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive inconie

Particulars As at 31 March Asat31

2025 March 2024
OCT at the beginning of the year 0.22 0.14
Actuarial (gain)’ loss on defined benefit obligation -
Changes in financial assumptions 0.02 (0.01)
Changes in demographic assumptions -
Experience adjustment 0.13 0.03
Return on plan asset excluding interest income - -
Adjustment to recognize the effect of asset ceiling ' - -
Closing amount recognized in OCI 0.37 0.16
E Plan Asset :

Plan asset comprises of the following;

I’ﬁrticulars As at 31 March Asat 31

2025 March 2024

Funds managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 0.98 0.86

F Defined Benefit Obligation
(i) Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date {expressed as weighted average):

Attrition rate

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation

. As at 31 March Asat 31
- Particular
artiewiars 2025 Mareh 2024
Discount rate 6.55% 7.15%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
25%p.a 25%p.a

withdrawal rate at
all ages

withdrawal rate
at all ages

The weighted average assumptions used 1o determine net periodic benefit cost as set out below:

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in aceordance with the standard table - JALM 2012-
n) 14 (Ultimate). The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and
prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on prevailing market yields of government securities

1) Gratuity is applicable only to employees who have completed five years of service and drawing a salary in
Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plans.

(if) Sensitivity analysis

Reasanably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined henefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

. As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars
Increase Decrcase | Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) ~2.41% 251%)  -2.80% 291% LS
Future salary growth (0.5% )
movement) 2.51% -2.44% 2.93% -2.84%
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Kuttukawan Green Private Limited
(Fonmesly Kutukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited:
Notes to the financial stntements (continued)
(A amounts in INR milhions}
3B Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management
A} Accounting classifications and fulr vatues
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets nnd finanesal habilities, including their levels in the fir vatue hierarchy.
As at 31 March 2025
Carrying Fair valuc
_— y .o, | Financial nssets at .. Other financinl .. . -
Particubars Note | mortised cast ’“""F"\fl'r"?”'-‘ A pilidesat °'“if|;‘::’""g Levell Level?  Level3  Total
. amaortised cast ;
Assets
Finnncint assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 9 0.38 0.38 -
Bank balances other thap cash and cash equivatents - .
Trade receivables 8 11.34 1134 - -
Other financial assets 10 388 383 . -
Financial assets measured af fair value -
Rent Deposit (Included in other financial Assets) 19 3.34 3.34 - 3.34 3.34
Tofaf 15.57 3.34 - 1891 - - 334 334
Liahilities - .
Financial iabilities measured nt amortised cost .
Trade payables 16 ) 17.01 1701 - - - -
Borrowings # 12 |- 3.03 44.47 47.50 - - 3.03 3.03
Lense linbilities 31 14.36 14.36 - - . -
Qther financial labiliti 0.71 0,71 - - . -
Total . - . 303 77.05 80.07 - . 3.03 - 3.03
As at 31 March 2024
Carrving amount Fair value.
Particulars Note ﬁ"“m:f' assets at Mandatorily at Or.hcr. m.mncml Total carrying
amortised cost FVTPL fiabilities at vitue Levell Level2  Loveld Total
amartised cost
Assets
Financial assets not meitsured at fair valae
Cash and cash equivalents ] [ 34 - - 1126 - .
Bank balanices othier than cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -
Trade receivables 8 71 - - 7.4 - .
Otlier financial assets 10 i.56 - - 1.56 - - .
Financial assets mensured at fair value .
Reat Deposit (Included in other financial Asseist i0 - . 5.39 - 5.39 - : 339 5.39
Tori 19.93 5.39 - 2533 . - 5.39 5.39
Linbititics
Financiat Hiabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 16 . - 6.82 6.82 - - - -
Bormrowings # 12 . 274 3145 34.19 . - 2.74 274
Lease liabilities 31 - - 18.19 18.19 - - - -
Onher financiaf liabilities - 1.02 1.02 To- - - -
Total - 2,74 3748 60.22 - - 274 2.74

Measurement of fair vatues
The fair value of the financinl instruments is detennined using dxscaumed cash flow analysis. The discount mtes used is based on management cstimates.

Level 1 fair vatues

Tnvesunent in equity shares that has  guoted prie and which are actively traded on the stork exchanges. It 1s been valued using the closing price as 5t the reporting period an the stock
exchanges.

Level 2 fair values

Investment in mutupl funds - 15 ungquoted price and are observ .|blv. for the asset or liability, ¢ither directly (i.c., 0s prices) or indirectly (i.c., derived from prices),

Level 3 fair values
If unc or more of the significant inputs B not based on observable dota. the imstrument is inchuded in level 3.
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Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

{Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

{All amounnts in INR millions)

30B Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk managenment (continued)
B} Financial risk management
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, ligquidity risk and market risk.

i) Risk management {framework

The Group's board of directors ('the Bourd') has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
management framework. They oversee how managenient monitors compliance with the risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation (o the risks faced by the Group. The
Board is assisted in its oversight roic by internal audit. Internal andit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the resulis of which are reported to the Board.

i}  Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to financial loss. The credit nsk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from
its investing activities, including depusits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments,

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit
has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a
continuous basis by the receivables team. )

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk for trade receivables was as follows;

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Trade receivable 1L71 7.11
1171 711

Impairment analysis
The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 Marceh 31, 2024
Less than | year 11.51 7.1
1-2 years 0.21 0.00
2-3 years
More than 3 years
11.71 7.11

The movement in allowanee for cradit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning . -
Provision created during the year 037 -
Iinpairment loss recognised/ (reversed) - -
Balance at the end 0.37 -

No single customer accounied for more than 10% of the revenue. There is no sieni ficant concentration of credit risk.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Group generally transacts with banks and
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies,
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vaquidity risk

Liguidity risk 1s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated witls its financial
Liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach 1o managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet it liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring nnaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

The Company believes that the working capitai is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liguidity risk is

perceived. .
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2025:
Particulars Payable within 1 year More than 1 year Total
‘Trade payables 17.01 7.0t
Borrowings # 34.33 1014 44,47
Lease liabilities 3.93 10.92 14.86
Other financial liabilities 0.71 0.71
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturkies of significant financial linbilities as of 31 March 2024
Particulars Pavable within 1 year More than 1 year Total
Trade payables 6.82 6.82
Borrowings # 0.88 30.57 31.45
Lease linbilities 337 14.82 18.19
Other financial liabilities 1.02 - 1.02

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as

foreign exchange rates, interest rates and cyuity prices.
Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk t the extent that there is a mismateh between the currencies in which transactions are denominated and the

functional currency of the Group. The funciional currency of the Group is INR

during the years ended 31 March 2025 & 3} March 2024
Cash flow and {air value interest rate risk

and the Group does not have any material foreign currency transactions

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term and short-term borrowngs with variable rates, which expose the Group o cash flow interest
rate risk. The imerest rate on the Group's linancial instruments is based on market rates.. The Group monitors the movement in integest ratés on an

ongoing basis.

(2 Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Groug's borrowing to interest rate changes ai the end of

the year are as follows:

March 31, 2024

Financial liabilities (bank borrowings) March 31, 2025
Variable rate long term borrowings includmg current maturities 12.61 30.62
Variable rute shorl term borrowings
Total variable rate borrowings 12.61 30.62

Scusitivity

.t

Particulars

Impact on profit or (loss)

fmipact on other components of equity

Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1% increase in variable rate (0.13) (0.31)
%, decrease in variable rate 0.13 0.31

The imterest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of variable rate borvowings from banks

and financial institutions.
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Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private:Limited) e
Notes to the financial statements (continued) '
(All amounits in INR in millions)

31 Leases
(i) Lease liabilities
Following are the changes in the lease liabilities for the quarter ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

For the year ended 31  For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2025 © March 2024
Opening Balance for the period 18.19 15.18
Additions 6.69
Finance cost accrued during the period 1.45 1.59
Reversal of liability due to cancellation of lease agreement : {0.83)
Payment of lease labilities (4.78) (4.44)
Closing balance 14.86 18.19
Non-current lease liabilities 10.92 14.82
Current lease liabilities 3.93 3.37

(i) Maturity aualpsis — contracinal undiscounted cash flows

For the year ended 31  For the year ended 31

Particul
artieniars March 2025 March 2024
Less than one year 5.02 4.748
One to five years . . 10.69 15.71
More than five years ‘ 2.08 2.08
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 17.79 2257
(iii) Right-of-use assets
. For the year ended 31  For the vear ended 31
Particular y
raeuiars March 2025 March 2024
Opening Balance for the period 16.08 13.82
Addition to right-of-use assets _ 6.69
Reversal of ROU asset due to cancellation of lease agreement - 0.72
Less: Amortisation for the period 3.34 3.71

Closing balance 12.74 15.08




~~

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR in millions)

32 Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, credifor
and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management
monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity
ratio. For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term
borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and other equity.

Asat31 | Asat31
Particulars March | March
2025 2024

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the company (3.91) (3.02)
As a percentage of total capital 0% 0%
Long - term borrowings 13.17] - 33.31
Short - term borrowings : 34.33 0.88
Total Borrowings ' 47.50 34.19
As a percentage of total capital 100% 100%
Total capital (Equity and borrowings) 43.59 31.16
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313 Related parties
1. Names of related pariies and descripnon of veluiiioniip
ta} Holding Company (Fram 03.04 2022)
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

it Fellow subsidiaries . sl T T .
Populari{uld Works Private Limated
Popular Anto Dealers Private Limited
Poputar Mega Motors tindia) Private Lunited. India
Ruttukaran Cars Prsate Limnted
Vision Motors Private Limited. Emakulain

icy Key management personnet and their relatives (KA
Mr. Naveen Philip, Director
Mr. Francis K Paul. Director
Mr, Joho K Paul. Dwector
Mr. Livod Franklin Dsouza, Dircctor
Mr. P.J Shice, Direstor
11, Reluted pariy transacrions -
far _The Company has entered dio the follawing sransaciions wuh relawd parties during ese perivds

Year ented
31 March 2024

Year endeit

Particulars A1 Murch 3025

Revenue from Operatiuns .
Popular Awo Dealers Private Limited . kn
£xpenses met on behalf of the company .
Kuttukaran Cars Privine Limited ' .55 -
Popular Aute Deafers Private Limited 0.06
intercorporate Loan Reecived
Popular Vehicles and Services Lumited 3000
Intereorporate Luan Repaid
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited R.16 .
Issue of Preference Shares :
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited -
Issue of Equity Shares .
Papulir Vehicles and Services Limited 1000 3,00
Purchase of Asset
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 976
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited [
Purchase of Inventory
Popular Vehicles and Services Lunited 0.01 400
Popular Mega Motors (fndia) Private Limued 081 0.40

Related parties (continned)
i Beloted parey fransacnons (continuedl

Particulars

Year endued
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Expeuses met by the campany

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Popular Auio Dealers Private Limited
Kumukaran Cars Private Lunsted

Popular Mega Motors ¢India) Private Limited
1nterest on Intercorporite Loan

Papular Vehicles and Services Limited
Repair and Maintennnce Expenses

Visien Motors Private Limited

Corporite Guarantee Comnission expenses
Popular Auo Dealers Private Limited
|Papular Yehicles and Services Limited

.14
947
1.47

L 0.22

0.26
.22
0.4
045

.19

402
\ﬁl/}
9.4

11, Balance receivable fromy (pavabdle) ta velated partios as at the bahuce sheet dittes

Particulars

Year ended
31 Murch 2025

Year endud
31 March 2024

Receivable
Popular Avto Dealers Privare Limited
Kuttuhasan Cars Private Limied

Pavable

Kutwbharan Cars Private Limited

Papular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mega Motars (India} Povate Limited

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Corpopate Guamntee commission pavahie
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Popular Velicles and Services Eimited Inter-corporte loan

313
0.20

F1.84
.0t

0.03

181

3u.00
.02

- 0492
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35

The paid up Equity Share Capital and accumulated losses of the Company as at 31st March 2025 was Rs. 9.40 (amount in millions) and Rs. 13.38 (amount in
millions) respectively. The accumulated losses exceeds the networth of the Company as at 31st March 2025, As per review of operations by the management. the
market for electric vehicles is expected to grow based on several factors such as new Govt. policies for supporting use of electric vehicles to phase out diesel vehicles
and promote cleaner alternatives, introduction of new marketing policies for increase in sales by hiring new personal exclusively for catering to needs of corporate
sales, digital marketing personal. introduction of new test drive zenes. The Company also focuses on improvisation of services by setting up service studia pockéts.-
service camps, home service polishing to build loyalty with customers. The group is enthusiastically embracing the growth opportunity in the EV segment business in
India. Electric Threc Wheeler market study in Kerala shows that 61% market share belongs 1o *Big Passenger Vehicle” and currently Company is addressing only
*Small Passenger Vehicle' having market share of 21%. OEM is expected to come up with new Big Passenger variants in Q1 of this year with more gradeability
which will boost the sales in the upcoming year. The Cormpany is expecting more town permits daring the year from local governiment which will alse increase the
expected volume of sales. Out of 35 Mn borrowed funds from holding company Popular Vehicles and Services Lid an amount of 10 Mn has been converted into
equity. Even though the net worth 1s negative, the company has been able to improve its service volume, Service revenue in FY 2024-25 amounts to 8§ Mn when
compared 10 4 Mn in the FY 2023-24 Further. the Cost of Goods sold has decreased during the current year on account of improved suppart from principal OEM in
the form of incentives and discounts from 2.5 Mn in 2023-24 10 7.0 M. The improvement in the inventory manageinent system and collection from customer during
the upcoming years will ensure better working capital management throughout the coming years 50 as to ensure savings in interest cost.

Based on the above operations plans, the management believes that the Company will be able to continue its operations on a going concern basis and meot all its
liabilities as they fall due for payment hased on the financial strategies and operating plans which the management believes will enable the Company to generate
operating cash flows in the luture especially in view of new dealership. The financial statements have accordingly been prepared on a going concem basis,

{a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies}, wcluding foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ulimate Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, security

or like on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{12) The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity{ies) (“Funding Party™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly. fend or invest in other persons or eatities identified by or on behalf of he Funding Party {("Ultimate
Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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36 Ratios as per the Schedule III requirements

1) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current Assets 35.30 35.10
Current Liabilities 62.71 36.92
Ratio 0.356 0.95
% Change from previous year -41%

Reason for variance more than 25%:

Increase in borrowings due to additional funding requirements led to a 30% rise, from 334.19 Mn

inFY 23-24 t0 347.50 Mn in FY 24.25,

Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of

2) .
current & non current borrowings
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total debt 47.50 34.19
Total equity 3.9 (3.02)
Ratio (12.13) (11.3D)
% Change from previous year 7%

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio IEBITDA/(Interest Cost + Long term -rshort term

borrowings)] .

_ Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
EBITDA (2.95) 2.03
Interest Cost 6.25 6.28
Borrowings 47.50 34.19
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (0.05) 0.05
% Change from previous year -209%

Reason for variance more than 25%:

Increase in borrowings during FY 24-25 compared to the previous year due to additional funding

requirements,

Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by

4 Equity
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net Profit after tax (10.89) (7.26)
Total equity (3.91) (3.02)
Ratio 2,78 2.40
% Change from previous year 16%
5) Net profit ratic = Net profit after tax divided by Sales
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net Profit after tax {10.89) -1.26
Sales 139.87 243.57
Ratio (0.08) -0.03
% Change [rom previous year 161%

Reason for variance more than 25%:

Significant decrease in sales volume from 634 units to 339 units in FY 24-

revenue, adversely affecting the ratio.

25 led to a decling in
/“”.",.:ﬁ & \\\




6) . " . .
) 1nventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by closing inventory

Particulars March 31, 2025 NMarch 31,2024
Purchase of stock in trade [a] 126.13 206.23
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade [b] {10.04) 8.19
Cost of Material Consumed [a}+{b) 116.09 214.41
Closing Inventory 2118 13.50
Ratio 5.48 . 15.88
% Change from previous year -65%

Reason for variance more than 25%:
Inventory management was less ¢
increased market competition and a reduction i
leading to weaker inventory turnover ratio

ffective in FY 24-25 due to slow-moving stock, impacted by
n government subsidy from ¥80.000 10 ¥20,000,

Net capital Turnover Ratio = "Fotal income divided by Net Working capital whercas net
working capital= current assets - current linbilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Total income 144 .34 244.82
Current Asset {a] 35.30 35.10
Current Liability {b} 62.71 36.92
Net Working Capital [a}-[b] (27.42) -1.82
Ratio (5.26) -134.29
9% Change from previous ygar -96%

Reason for variance move than 25%;
The decline in income due to the entry of new
outstanding borrowings by 213 Mn. led

competitors, coupled with an increase in
1o a deterioration in the ratios.

8) Trade Reccivable Turnover Ratio [Total [ncome/Trade Receivable}
Particulars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Total Income 144.34 244 .82
Trade Receivable 11.34 7.1
Trade Receivable Turnover Raiio 12.73 34.42
% Change from previous year end -63%

Reason for variance more than 25%:

Collection from government sales significantly drop

ped in FY 24-25, with an average collection

rate of 50% compared to aver 90% in FY 23-24, adversely impacting the ratio

Return on Capital employed=

Garnings before interest and taxes(EBIT) divided by Capital

Employed

Particulars Marech 31, 2025 March 31,2024
EBIT {8.04) (3.04)
Total Asset {a] §3.72 82.39
Current Liability [b] 62.71 36.92
Capital Employed {a]-[b] 21.00 4546
Ratio 0.38) {007
9% Change from.previous year 473%

Reason for variance more than 25%:

Inerease in borrowings and decline in sales volume in F

led to deterioration in the ratios.

10) Trade Pay

Y 24-25 compared to the previous year

able Turnover Ratio [Purchase of stock in trade/Trade payable]

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2024
Purchase of Stock in trade 126.13 206.23
Trade Payable 17.04 6.82
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 7.42 30.23
% Change from previous year -75%

Reason for variance more than 25%:

Trade payables increased in FY 24.25 gs the OEM debited the subsidy payable, resulting in

higher outstanding dues.
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37 Addidonal regulatory information pursuant to the requirement in Division II of Schedule HI to the Companies Act, 2013
i} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.
ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
iii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment ,right-of-use assets or intangible assets or both during the
current or previous year.
iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
v) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
vi) None of the entities in The Company have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority. '
vii} The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
viii) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year.

38 Previous Year figures are regrouped wherever found necessary.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited
CIN: US0400KL2017PTC049442

% b —1

John K Paul Naveen Philip
Director Director
DIN: 00016513 DIN: 00018827

Place: Kochi
Date:




2024-25 (For the period-1st April 2024 to 315t March 2025)
Kuttukaran Green Private Limited { Formely Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited), Kochi - 25
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Fe:thun 180:days

Tax Purposes For the Year Ended 31.43.2025

‘Folil

ATA6161:50: ]

19:45,950.00;

Building 1,07,17,914.21 1,86,872.17 1,09,04,786.38 0.10 10,81,135.03 98,23.651.35
Furniture& Fittings 8,14,62549 8.14,625.49 0.10 81,462.55 7,33,162.94
Compuier 5,02,061.00 1,650.00 65,000.00 5,68,711.00 0.40 2,14,484.40 3,54,226.60
Office Equipments 34.616.48 7,457.63 42,074.11 0.15 5,751.79 3632231
Vehicles 12,03,473.08 12,03,473.08 0.13 1.80.520.96 10,22,952.12
Electric Vehicles® 10,50,843.60 18.98,140.00 29,48,983.60 0.40 11,79,593.44 17.69,390.16
Air Conditioner 2.04.889.10 2,04,889.10 0.15 30,733.37 1,74,155.74
Plant & Machinery 2,17,738.63 46,160.00 4971.18 2,68,869.81 39,957.63

3,630);

(*) Note:- Represents electricatly opersted vohicles under the hiead senewable cnerpy devices as per clause (xiii) (o) of New Appendix 1 of Income Tax Rules.

\a




200 250Q4
Particulars Bal‘;;‘s:li‘: per B“I‘;;‘ff&‘c‘f-'pe"-' Differéice | DTA | DTL

WDV 17.62 14.14 3.48 0.88

Unabsorbed Depreciation carried forward -

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 0.37 0.37 0.09

Provision for Gratuity 0.63 0.63 0.16

Provision for Bonus 0.69 0.69 0.17

Provision for Leave Encashment 0.29 0.29 0.07

35D Disallowance - -

35D Disallowance Year 3 0.06 0.06 6.01

35D Disallowance Year 1 0.11 0.11 0.03

Carry forward losses 39.64 39.64 9.98

IndAS 116 2.11 2.11 0.53

v 11.05 0.88

Closing Balance 10.17
115BAA
Tax rate 22.00%
Surcharge 2.20%
Cess 0.97%

_ 2517%




